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Disclaimer 
Information contained in this document is based on available information at the time of writing. 
 
Council or its officers accept no responsibility for any loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting in reliance 
upon any material contained in this document. 

Address and ABN 
 
Community Address: PO Box 30, Kowanyama. QLD 4892 
Street Address: 30 Chapman Road, Kowanyama QLD 4892 
 
Cairns Address: PO Box 769, Bungalow QLD 4870 
Street Address: Level 1, 50 Scott Street, Bungalow QLD 4870 
 
ABN: 86255216480 
 
Cover photo, Viv Sinnamon.  Back photo, Jacqui Cresswell. 
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Mayoral Foreword 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I acknowledge my predecessor Mayor Robert Holness and thank him for his leadership and 
service. 

My Council elected in March 2016 owes a debt of gratitude to the previous Council who 
worked hard and made the strong decisions to deliver a surplus, improved services and a 
community better prepared for the challenges ahead. 

I am pleased to report that the Topsy Creek barge landing project is proceeding and will 
eventually bring all weather access to Kowanyama.  This is one of the largest such projects 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council has ever delivered and will bring important 
employment opportunities for locals. 

Council has phased in a new organisational structure which draws on the lessons from the 
past and best positions us to tackle the challenges of the future. 

Council’s income generating enterprises such as the Accommodation Centre, Airport and 
Light Vehicle Workshop are performing well and in some cases exceeding expectations.  
This has allowed Council to expand service delivery for locals and deliver increased 
employment opportunities. 

The swimming pool has been completed and the multi-purpose centre continues to provide 
services to hundreds of children. 

I would also like to formally acknowledge the tragic year Kowanyama has had in 2015 with 
over 20 deaths in a community of 1200 people.  
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Structure of the Annual Report 

 

This report has four main sections: 

 

 Section One - Our Council and Country.  An overview of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire 
Council’s history, geography, governance structure and aspirations 
 
 

 Section Two - Review of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council’s Operational 
Performance 

 

 Section Three - Additional reporting requirements in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 

 

 Section Four - Review of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council’s Financial Performance 
including the Community Financial Report and Certified Financial Statements 
 

It is the intention that the information included in these updates will demonstrate Council's 
commitment to open and accountable governance and will provide readers with an insight 
into Council’s performance, compliance and financial position. 
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Section One 

Our Council and Country 
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Kowanyama Geography and Community History 
 

The Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council lies 25 km (as the crow flies) from the east coast 
of the Gulf of Carpentaria in the south-western region of the Cape York Peninsula, and 600 
km north west of Cairns. The total area equals approximately 4,120 square kilometres and 
consists mainly of wetlands and delta mangroves in the north, extending to “forest country” 
of the central peninsula. The community has a population of approximately 1,200 people. 

The community is based on the banks of Magnificent Creek, which joins the South Mitchell 
River, which in turn forms part of the Mitchell River Delta. Road access is only available four 
to five months of the year in the dry season.  Weekday flights to and from Cairns service the 
community throughout the year. 

 

 

Kowanyama, Google Earth 
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Satellite image of the Mitchell River, Kowanyama, in full flood 

Satellite image of the Mitchell River, Kowanyama, in full 

flood 
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Community History 

In 1903 the Queensland Government declared the Mitchell River an Aboriginal Reserve for 
the benefit of the Aboriginal peoples of the State.  In 1905 the Anglican Trubanamen Mission 
was established inland on Topsy Creek - this is now known as the old mission. Aboriginal 
peoples of the region were gradually drawn from their ancestral lands into the mission 
settlement. 

In 1916 the headquarters of the Anglican Mission moved to Kowanyama and formed the 
Mitchell River Mission and the Trubanamen site was abandoned. 

Some peoples continued to occupy their traditional lands, moving into Kowanyama as late 
as the 1940s. 

In 1964, a cyclone destroyed the mission, however the Queensland government funded the 
rebuilding. 

In 1967 the Anglican church were no longer able to sustain their activities in the area as a 
Church Mission and the Department of Aboriginal and Islander Affairs took over the 
administration of the Mitchell River Mission and Reserve. 

In 1987 the State transferred control to the Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council via a Deed 
of Grant in Trust. 

Kowanyama is now one of the largest communities in Cape York Peninsula with 
approximately 1200 residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mitchell River Mission 1919 
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Culture 

Kowanyama means “place of many waters” in the Yir Yoront language. The Indigenous 
inhabitants are the direct descendants of Aboriginal groups who inhabited the Lower Mitchell 
and Alice Rivers and neighbouring areas. The community includes the Kokoberra, Yir 
Yoront (or Kokomnjen) and Kunjen clans.  

Kowanyama's Aboriginal people continue to identify strongly with their ancestral countries 
and with the languages, stories, songs, dances, and histories associated with those 
countries. Language groups associated with countries in the Kowanyama region are Yir 
Yoront, Yirrk Thangalkl, Koko Bera, Uw Oykangand, and Olkola. 

 

Council Services - Overview 

The Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is responsible for local government services such 
as road construction and maintenance, water infrastructure – supply and quality control - 
sewerage infrastructure and maintenance, sanitation and hygiene, environmental health, 
parks and gardens 

In addition to these primary functions Council also provides the following services and 
facilities: 

 Enterprises: 

o Bakery 

o Vehicle Workshop 

o Post Office and Bank 

o Blue Café 

o Batching Plant 

o Residential and Commercial Rentals 

o Training Centre Offices / Dongas 

o Canteen 

o Airport 

o Centrelink Agency 

 Housing Management, including house maintenance and new house construction 

 Local radio station 

 Operation and management of the Stores Facility 

 Management of leasehold cattle properties (Oriners and Sefton) 

 Operation and management of the Aged Persons Hostel 

 Operation and management of the Child Care Centre, Play Group 

 Operation and management of the Land & Natural Resources Office  

 Aboriginal Community Police Officers – who work in conjunction with Queensland 
Police Service 
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 Youth, Sport & Recreation programs and services 

 Swimming Pool Centre 

 Women’s and Men’s Groups 

 
 
 
 

 

  

Outline map of Kowanyama – Remote Indigenous Land and Infrastructure Program Office 
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Council’s Vision and Mission Statements 
 

Vision – Our Goal: 

 

"To deliver good and effective 
governance through strong leadership 
that will positively contribute to the 
improvement of the quality of life and 
wellbeing for the community." 

 

 

Mission – How we will achieve our goal: 
 

"To enhance the quality of life and 
wellbeing through improved delivery of 

service, enterprise and business 
development, recognising and 

respecting culture, maintaining and 
expanding on networks and promoting 

capacity to build a successful and 
healthy community." 
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Our Values 

 

1. Health, wellbeing and lifestyle  

2. Safety of children  

3. Promotion of family unity  

4. Education  

5. Strong leadership  

6. Commitment and determination  

7. Accountability and transparency  

8. Business development  

9. Employment opportunities  

10. Training and capacity building  

11. Maintaining culture  
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John Fry 

 Current - Councillor, 2016 

Elected Members 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council has an elected body of five Councillors, with specific 
powers, responsibilities and duties set out in the Local Government Act 2009 (the Act). 

Elections for the Mayor and Councillors are undertaken every four years, with the last 
election held on Saturday 19 March 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Michael Yam 

 Current - Mayor, 2016 

 Previous -  Deputy Mayor, 2012-2016 

 

Colin Lawrence 

 Current - Councillor, 2016 

Territa Dick 

 Current - Deputy Mayor Councillor, 2016 

 Previous - Councillor, May 2015-2016 (as per Local 

Government Act 2009, Section 166 (2)(b)) 

 

Wendy Wust 

 Current - Councillor, 2016 
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Previous Elected Members 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Robert Holness  

 Mayor, 2012-2016 

Teddy Bernard 

 Councillor, 2012-2016 

William (Billy) Thomas 

 Councillor, 2012-2016 
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Section Two 

Operational Performance 
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Whole of Council Update 

Council continues to work towards its five year Corporate Plan and Annual Operational Plan.   

During 2016 - 2017 Council will be reviewing our aspirations and further developing our 

Corporate and Operational plans to strengthen our community and governance outcomes. 

A summary of our current Corporate Plan goals are provided below. 

1. Arts and Cultural Development 

 Council continued to support and expand on programmes related to arts and 

cultural activities that benefit the Kowanyama Community. 

 Council continues to work with Kowanyama’s Traditional Owners through the 

Counsel of Elders to ensure that our Cultural heritage is maintained and 

strengthened. 

 

2. Community Development and Human Services 

Governance 

 Council is committed to maintain and strengthen all facets of Governance to 
ensure accountability and transparency is achieved at all times. 

 Council is committed to working within its organisational structure. 
Quality of Life 

 Council’s ongoing commitment is to ensure strategies are developed and 
expanded so the highest quality of life (including health, housing, sport and 
recreation etc) is provided in Kowanyama. 

Capacity Building 

 Council is committed to the enhancement of training and mentoring 
opportunities that will strengthen the development of the Kowanyama 
Community. 

Alcohol Management Plan (AMP) 

 Council will continue to work with the Community Justice Group, and the 
Queensland Government towards positive changes to the AMP that will ensure 
Community empowerment and ownership.  

 
3. Disaster Mitigation 

Council will review its current Disaster Mitigation Plan to ensure that the plan reflects 
the safety needs of the Kowanyama Community in the event of natural disasters. 

4. Economic Development. Through partnerships and networking Council will ensure 
the promotion of enterprise and business development that leads to social and 
economic independence. 
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5. Environmental Management 

Council continues to work in partnership with Traditional Owners through Council’s 
Land Office in the ongoing development and implementation of a land and natural 
resource management plan to ensure the current environment is maintained for future 
generations of Kowanyama people. 

6. Housing Policy 

Council continues to work in partnership with Government agencies to ensure housing 
construction meets Community needs and demands. Council will review and update 
its Housing Policy to ensure it meets all legislative requirements and continually 
reviews the Housing Improvement Plans. 

7. Infrastructure Development, Maintenance and Replacement  

Council continues to work with Government agencies and Non-Government 
Organisations (NGOs) to develop and maintain infrastructure and essential services 
that benefit better living conditions within the community. 
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Corporate Structure 
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Departmental Updates 
 

Corporate Services 
 

Corporate Services manages the following functions and services: 

 

 

The summaries over the next pages provide highlights on the activities within Corporate 
Services over 2015 - 2016: 

 

 

Enterprises 
 
Bakery 
Vehicle Workshop 
Post Office and Bank 
Blue Café 
Batching Plant 
Residential and 
Commercial Rentals 
Training Centre Offices / 
Dongas 
Canteen 
Airport 

 

Financial Services 
 
Financial Management 
Management Accounting 
Projects Accounting 
Purchasing and Stores 
Grants 
Payroll 
Debtors 
Creditors 
Reception 

 

Administration Services 
 
Human Resources 
Workplace Health and 
Safety 
Administration management 
Cleaning 
Records and Archives 
Information Technology (IT) 
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Post Office/Bank Agency 

Kowanyama Post Office is run under a licence agreement between Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire 

Council and Australia Post. The hours of operation are 9am to 4pm Monday to Friday (with 1 hour 

for lunch between 12pm & 1pm). 

There are four mail deliveries a week that coincide with the Skytrans flight. During the dry season 

when the roads are open the larger articles of mail are delivered weekly on Tuesdays by Tuxworth 

& Woods Carriers. 

We have a Commonwealth Bank ATM which is located in the foyer and is the same type of 

machine used by all Commonwealth Bank outlets, providing a fast and accurate service. 

Through Australia Post we are able to provide for sale a variety of telephones, computers, 

stationary, printers and multimedia products at the same price you would buy them at any 

Australia Post outlet Australia wide. This provides competitive pricing for our community members, 

without having to go to Cairns to access these prices. 

We also still have a small number of Post Office boxes available for lease - this is a convenient 

way to receive mail 24/7. 

At Kowanyama Post Office you can pay your bills, like car registrations, telephone accounts, 

Foxtel and many others. Just present the payment advices at the counter and we will take care of 

them. 

“I would like to thank the staff that has worked at the 

Post Office during this year… It is a job well done. 

Thanks also go to the Council for all their support 

during the year. Without their valued support the Post 

Office would not be able to provide the professional 

service to the community that they deserve.” 

David Jack – Post Office Manager 
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Airport 

The focus of Airport Management is to create an enhanced and safe travelling experience 
through Kowanyama Airport well into the future. Both short term and long term plans are 
reflected in the Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Airport Operating Plan which provides 
a framework to initiate airport and aerodrome upgrades that facilitate expected air transport 
volumes whilst catering to community needs and expectations. 

1. In the last 12 months Kowanyama airport has seen a large increase in service provision, 
which has benefited both community members and our service provision stakeholders. 

2. Kowanyama Airport now caters for a further two Regular Passenger Transport (RPT), (also 
known as scheduled services), giving a total of 12 flights per week – a significant increase 
from the previous four flights per week. 

3. There has been a tripling of scheduled services since 2013 between Skytrans and Hinterland 
Aviation with Charters, Royal Flying Doctors Service (RFDS) Clinic & Medivac, Freighters, 
Helicopters, Search & Rescue and Private air services. 

Annual forecasts for passenger movements sees a steady increase and demand for air 
services into Kowanyama. As a result new terminal and car park upgrades are currently being 
considered to align the community requirements for air travel into the next 20 years.  

4. Refuelling activities have also increased as a result of increased air traffic with a new refuelling 
truck acquired through the Grants Officer and Purchasing Manager. 

5. Plant and machinery upgrades are well underway for the airport as part of risk mitigation 
processes that identify non-compliance issues with such equipment. As refuelling of aircraft 
is a revenue stream for Council, Airport Management has implemented a 15 year plan to 
establish self-service static refuelling bowsers for JET A1 aircraft which will mitigate risk 
associated with refuelling events whilst allowing flexibility to aircraft operators. 

Kowanyama Airport 

David Durst, Airport Manager 
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Finance 

During 2015-2016 the priority for the Finance team has been to improve Council’s 
financial sustainability and processes to ensure compliance with our accounting 
and local government responsibilities.  In particular we have focused on enhancing 
the areas highlighted by the Queensland Audit Office (QAO).  We are now in a 
more stable position and are excited about driving further financial performance in 
2016-2017. 

In preparation for 2016-2017 the Finance team has worked on a new chart of 
accounts and job costing system. In addition, stock inventories for the purchasing 
store, bakery and workshop were moved into the accounting software ‘attaché’, 
giving greater control over pricing, stock losses and internal issues. 

The 2016-2017 annual budget categories of council operations, enterprises, tied 
and untied grants were also prepared in more detail than in prior years. 

 

Human Resources 
 
An important task has been re-establishing Council’s statutory compliance requirements 
with a number of statutory, strategic and administrative policies developed and approved 
by Council during the reporting period. This has included the development of policy 
protocols and templates.  In addition, various human resource management policies have 
been developed and implemented, with many more planned for development. 
 
At 30 June 2016 Council had 130 staff and 81% of employees identified as Aboriginal 
and/or Torres Strait Islander. 
 
 

Dennis McLeod, Human Resources Manager 

Helen Taylor, Finance Manager 
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Information Technology (IT) 
 

Website 

In 2015-2016 we invested in a new website to enrich our Council brand and provide more 
accessible information about our local area and community.  The website was also 
developed to ensure we are compliant with information provision requirements in 
accordance with our local government obligations. 

In 2016-2017 we will be developing our website further to strengthen user friendly 
information provision.  

 

IT Management 

For many years Council has experience a low telecommunications bandwidth which has 

hampered staff productivity.  To reduce this risk, in 2015-2016, working closely with our 

service providers, we further invested in our IT services to double our bandwidth.  We also 

negotiated with our service providers to better define the roles and responsibilities to 

enhance operations.   These measures have stabilised our IT system and provided a more 

secure network for our staff to work in.  In 2016-2017 we will continue to work closely with 

our stakeholders to further enhance our systems. 
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Infrastructure Services 
 

Infrastructure Services manages the following functions and services: 

 

The following summaries provides highlights on the activities within Infrastructure Services 
over 2015-2016: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Building Services 
 

Housing Services 

Building and Asset 

Services 

Housing Construction 

Electrical 

Carpentry 

Development and 

Planning 

Roads and Works 
 

Roads 

Parks and Gardens 

Natural Disaster Relief 

and Recovery 

Arrangements 

(NDRRA) 

Essential Services 
 

Water 

Sewerage 

Waste Management 

Environmental Health 

Animal Management 

Building Services 
 

Achievements in the Building Service unit include: 
 

 Upgrades - There were over 60 of the 940 upgrades and maintenance works 
completed, with the range of works being from internal and external painting, bathroom 
upgrades, kitchen replacements, replacement of floor coverings and tree removals.  
The majority of these works were completed by the council carpentry team, with 
contractors completing the larger works. 
 

 Pindi St Subdivision - There were six new homes completed, these new builds have 
increased our housing resources for community and also provided vital employment 
and training for our community members. 
 

 Concrete Batching Plant – continued successful operation of the plant 

Building Services Team 

Owen Patterson, Brad 

Hutchings (Manager), 

Paul Michael, Gilbert 

Gibo, Trevor Gilbo and 

David Raymond 
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Essential Services 
 

It has been a productive year for the essential service team with an emphasis on improving our 
infrastructure assets in Kowanyama. 
 
Two new generators have been installed at the main sewage pump stations to safeguard the 
community in the event of power failure and the old generators donated to Council for other 
projects. 
 
Three new aerators have been purchased and will be installed on primary ponds to ensure 
treatment process is working correctly along with a new grinder pump to mulch up debris before 
entering the system – which will reduce wear and tear of the system and increase the number 
of years it will be able to operate efficiently. 
 
In 2016-2017 we will continue to work closely with associated stakeholders and potential 
funding bodies to further the development of essential service assets and infrastructure for the 
community. 
 
Gregory Sandrey 
Essential Services Manager 

Aaron Teddy- Foreman Essential Services . Delvene Bernard  - 

Environmental Health Worker . Joe Adams – Tip master 
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Community Services 

Community Services manages the following areas: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following provides some highlights on the activities within Community Services over 
2015-2016: 

 

Aboriginal Land & Natural 

Resource Management 

Office 

 

Natural Resource 

Management (NRM) 

Ranger Services 

Cultural Heritage 

Social Services 
 
Community Policing 
Home and Community Care (HACC) 
Child Care 
Women’s Shelter 
Men’s Group 
Sports and Recreation 
Swimming Pool 
Centrelink 
Regional Indigenous Broadcasting Service (RIBS) 
 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Land and Natural Resource Management Office 
 

Since its inception in 1991, the Kowanyama Aboriginal Land and Natural Resources 
Management Office (KALNRMO) (the Land Office) has operated on a charter to support and 
facilitate Aboriginal management of the natural and cultural resources of Kowanyama land 
and sea country by the people of Kowanyama. The five-year strategic plan (2016-2020) is a 
guiding document for the people of Kowanyama to achieve ownership and management of 
their lands, waters and culture in their own way. The Strategy reflects the work undertaken to 
date, as well as the vast array of documents relating to natural resource and cultural 
management held by the Land Office. 
 
Through community consultation and direction, KALNRMO has developed a community 
development agenda for the Kowanyama region, including: 
Land Management including weeds and feral animal control 

 Tourism and Visitor Management 

 Kowanyama Ranger Service 

 Cultural Resource Documentation 
 
Kowanyama Rangers (working through KALNRMO) implement land management strategies 
in many areas of the Deed of Grant in Trust land (DOGIT), and, in addition to tourism and 
visitor management, they patrol closed and open waters. The Rangers also observe fisheries 
regulations, especially for illegal commercial or recreational fishing in closed waters 

 
 
 

 Monitoring of Flat Back and Olive Ridley nesting turtles on Kowanyama beaches, 
though the  “Nest to Oceans” program 

 Operation of Bikki Bikki” feral control team that has accounted for about 80 pigs in 
the tertiary dunes behind the Kowanyama beaches. 

 Oriners Station - installation of a photovoltaic solar system installed by our Rangers, 
a group of voluntary photovoltaic electrical engineers and the Centre for Applied 
Technology (CAT).  

 Ranger training in Conservation and Land Management 

 Implementation of a new safety Management Manual & System to ensure a safe 
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“It has been a busy year next year will prove 

to be even busier and more productive than 

ever. Well done to our productive and 

energetic team” 

Chris Hannocks - Manager, Kowanyama Aboriginal Land 
and Natural Resources Management Office 

The Kowanyama Aboriginal Lands Office and Natural Resource Office has had a productive 
year with a focus on consolidation.  Highlights include: 
 

 Monitoring of Flat Back and Olive Ridley nesting turtles on Kowanyama beaches, though the  
“Nest to Oceans” program 

 Operation of Bikki Bikki feral control team that has accounted for about 80 pigs in the tertiary 
dunes behind the Kowanyama beaches 

 Oriners Station - installation of a photovoltaic solar system installed by our Rangers, a group 
of voluntary photovoltaic electrical engineers and the Centre for Applied Technology (CAT)  

 Ranger training in Conservation and Land Management 

 Implementation of a new safety Management Manual & System to ensure a safe work place 
for our operations 

 Participation in the Australian Carbon Credit Units scheme and carbon burning at Oriners to 
support our revenue 

 

In 2015-2016 we also increased our corporate work in funding submission development and 
through the Grants Officer, have successfully obtained funding to commence new projects in 
2016-2017.  These include research & monitoring the Red Finch and attacking the Hymenachne 
Weed at Kokoberra swamp, with aerial spraying of pesticides and cattle exclusion fencing, to 
kill this highly invasive aquatic weed.  
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Home and Community Care (HACC) 
 

The HACC Centre supports community members in home care activities as well providing 
accommodation to those who cannot live at home anymore. 

The HACC Centre is known as pension home or old peoples’ home, however the units are 
classified as independent living units rather than aged care units.  It is a requirement that clients 
who move into the centre need to be independent to some degree. 

Achievements for 2015-2016 include: 

 Successful accreditation 

 Successful transfer to Consumer Directed Care for Community Aged Care Package (CACP) 
Clients 

 Continued provision of Community Home Services Package (CHSP) 

 Certificate II in kitchen operations provided to four HACC council employees and two Jobfind 
employees.  Training to ensure high quality and nutritious meals are provided for our internal 
and external clients 

 Continued staff training in: 
o Manual Handling 
o Infection Control 
o Safe Food Handling 
o First Aid/CPR 
o Cert III Aged Care Refreshers 

 Refurbishment of some interiors to improve home like feel of rooms 

 Advocating with our Federal and State government stakeholders to increase and improve 

service provision 
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Meals delivery 

Kowanyama HACC provides ‘Meals on Wheels’ for a significant number of clients in the 
community Monday to Friday and supplies weekend packs for all external clients on 
Thursday or Friday. The weekend packs are to assist the client over the weekend only and 
can be used if the client decides to go bush with their family. 

The total number of meals supplied by HACC in 2015-2016 was 23,360 of which 9,855 meals 
where provided at the Centre.  

 

Transport service  

Council provides a transport service for HACC clients to assist them attending medical 
appointments, shopping for food and essentials as well as attending community cultural 
events. 

 

Waiting list 

Kowanyama HACC continues to receive a high demand for our services and above the levels 

as detailed in our service agreement (our 2015-2016 service agreement provided funding for 

31 clients however we provided services to 47 clients). We are working closely with our 

stakeholder government department to advocate for an increase in our funding to provide 

additional service packages.  In the interim of a new service agreement being negotiated 

new clients will be added to the HACC waiting list. 

 

“I would like to thank all staff for their 

dedication over the past year in 

supporting their community and helping 

the elders to live as independent as 

possible.” 

Mr  Peter Jankowski - Aged Care Coordinator 
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o Sport and Recreation 

2015-2016 saw a continued increase in activities and programs to support community 

members to be healthy and active. 

Achievements for 2015-2016 include: 
 

 Coordination of community sports competitions, both local and in other regional 
communities 

 Recruitment of two additional staff members through the Indigenous 
Advancement Strategy (IAS) 

 6 Community Discos 

 School Holiday Program with Live Learn Leap - Our program was supported by 
the Live Learn Leap to assist with running safe and fun school holiday programs 
which included water bomb fights, slip and slides, cooking, fishing & turtle nest 
watching with the Kowanyama rangers and a variety of sport and other games 
played in this period 

 Kowanyama community Christmas event - The Kowanyama Community 
Christmas event was a great success with over 400 kids getting shirts and 
presents not to mention a great traditional feed of Wallaby, pig and all kinds of 
seasonal fish varieties. 

 6 a side indoor soccer competition (Junior and Senior Comps) - Both junior and 
senior teams had competitions running with 4 teams in the juniors and 7 in the 
seniors.  

 Junior Minh Kular Academy - The academy rewards attendance and behavior at 
school.  

 
Dane Furphy, Sport and Recreation Manager 
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Section Three 

Additional reporting requirements in 
accordance with the Local 
Government Act 2009 and Local 
Government Regulation 2012 
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Michael Yam X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 15 15 100% 

Territa Dick X X - X - X - - X X X X X X X 15 11 73% 

Colin Lawrence             X X - 3 2 67% 

Wendy Wust             X X X 3 3 100% 

John Fry             X X X 3 3 100% 

Robert Holness  X X X X X X X X X X X X    12 12 100% 

Teddy Bernard X - X X X X - X X - X X    12 9 75% 

William (Billy) 
Thomas 

X X X X X - X X - X X X    12 10 83% 

                   Key           
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Attended X           
       

Apologies  -           
       



 

36 

 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 2015 – 2016 Annual Report 

 

Councillor Remuneration 
 

Councillor Expenses Super Remuneration Total Payment 

Michael Yam $4,579.00 $0.00  $75,850.79  $80,429.79 

Territa Dick $2,365.95 $0.00  $65,551.01  $67,916.96 

Colin Lawrence $989.60 $0.00  $38,864.68  $39,854.28 

Wendy Wust $406.80 $0.00  $38,864.68  $39,271.48 

John Fry $944.00 $0.00  $10,895.58  $11,839.58 

Robert Holness $6,509.25 $0.00  $10,895.58  $17,404.83 

Teddy Bernard $771.65 $0.00  $10,895.58  $11,667.23 

William (Billy) Thomas $955.95 $0.00  $10,895.58  $11,851.53 

 

 

 

Expense Reimbursement Policy 

In accordance with Section 250 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (QLD), the 
expenses reimbursement policy is a policy providing for the following: 

(a) payment of reasonable expenses incurred, or to be incurred, by councillors for 
discharging their duties and responsibilities as councillors; 

(b) provision of facilities to councillors for that purpose. 

Council adopted its “Expenses Reimbursement Policy – Councillors” at the August 2013 
Council meeting, as below: 
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Expenditure on Grants to Community Organisations 

Council had nil expenditure on grants to community organisations. 
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Councillor Complaints and Recommendations 
 

Councillor Complaints and Recommendations Details 

The total number of orders and recommendations made under 
section 180(2) or (4) of the Act 

0 

The total number of orders made under section 181 of the Act 0 

The name of each councillor for whom an order or 
recommendation was made under section 180 of the Act or an 
order was made under section 181 of the Act 

N/A 

A description of the misconduct or inappropriate conduct 
engaged in by each of the councillors 

N/A 

A summary of the order or recommendation made for each 
councillor 

N/A 

Complaints about the conduct or performance of councillors for 
which no further action was taken under section 176C(2) of the 
Act; 

0 

Complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under 
section 176C(3)(a)(i) of the Act; 

0 

Complaints referred to the mayor under section 176C(3)(a)(ii) 
or (b)(i) of the Act 

0 

Complaints referred to the department’s chief executive officer 
under section 176C(4)(a) of the Act 

0 

Complaints assessed by the chief executive officer as being 
about corrupt conduct under the Crime and Corruption Act 

0 
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Administrative Action Complaints 

Administrative Action Complaints Details 

A statement about the local government’s commitment to 
dealing fairly with administrative action complaints 

See 
“Complaints 
Management 
Process” 

A statement about how the local government has implemented 
its complaints management process, including an assessment 
of the local government’s performance in resolving complaints 
under the process. 

See 
“Complaints 
Management 
Process” 

Administrative action complaints made to the local 
government; 

0 

Administrative action complaints resolved by the local 
government under the complaints management process;  

0 

Administrative action complaints not resolved by the local 
government under the complaints management process; 

0 

The number of administrative action complaints under 
paragraph (a)(iii) that were made in a previous financial year. 

0 

 

  

Complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel 0 

Complaints heard by the tribunal 0 

Complaints to which section 176C(6) of the Act applied 0 
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Complaints Management Process 

Council has a Complaints Management Process and has provided a complaints form on our 

Website which also details the process.  However, Council has identified that the current 

Complaints Management Process could be enhanced. 

Council will be developing a robust Complaints Management Policy and Procedure in 

2016/2017. 

 

Equal Opportunity in Employment 

Council has identified that the current Equal Opportunity in Employment documentation 

could be enhanced. 

Council will be developing a robust Equal Opportunity in Employment Policy and Procedure 

in 2016/2017. 

 

Senior Management Remuneration 

There were the following number of senior contract employees with a total remuneration 

package in the range of: 

 

$100,000 - $119,000: 2 

$120,000 - $149,000: 2 

$150,000 - $175,000: 1 

$175,000 and above: 1 
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Investigation Notices 

Council did not receive any Investigative Notices from Queensland Competition Authority. 

 

Internal Audit 

The Internal Audit function is an integral part of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council’s 
governance framework. It is designed to provide the organisation’s stakeholders with 
assurance that business processes are operating appropriately and effectively. 

The Internal Audit function is legislatively required to assess and evaluate the control 
measures the organisation has adopted, or plans to adopt, to manage the operational risks 
to which the Local Government operations are exposed. 

To meet these requirements Council has undertaken the following actions: 

 Engaged an audit consultant ‘Pacifica’ to provide internal audit tasks  

 Established an Audit Committee 

 Development of the Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council Strategic Internal Audit 
Plan 

In accordance with Section 207 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Local 
Government is required to assess compliance with the Annual Internal Audit Plan. To do 
this Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is required to provide its Audit Committee with a 
status report on Internal Audit work performed and work to be undertaken. Council’s Audit 
Committee met on 2 September 2015 and 19 January 2016 to discuss audit activities.  An 
Internal Audit Progress report was presented to the Audit Committee in August 2016. 

 

Commercial Business Units 

Council does not currently have any adopted commercial business units. 

 

Overseas Travel 

There was no overseas travel by a Councillor or local government employee in an official 
capacity during the financial year. 

 

Invitations to Change Tender 

Council did not receive any invitations to change tenders under during the financial year. 

 

Rates and Charges 

Council did not levy any special rates or charges in the 2015-2016 financial year. 
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Registers 

Council holds the following registers: 

 Register of Electoral Gifts  

 Register of Interest of each Councillor  

 Register of Interest of persons related to Councillor  

 Minutes of Local Government Meetings  

 Register of Contact by Lobbyists  

 Road Register/Road Maps  

 Schedule of Fees and Charges  

 Register of Local Laws and Subordinate Local Laws  

 Register of Burials  

 Register of Regulatory Fees  

 Register of Delegations  

 Register of Council Policies 

  



 

43 

 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 2015 – 2016 Annual Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section Four 

Financial Reporting: 

 Community Financial Report 

 Certified Financial Statements  
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Community Financial Report 
 

There are five areas in the Financial Report. These are: 

 Statement of Comprehensive Income (Operating Position) - This details the total income 
earned and total expenses incurred during the financial year and whether Council made a 
profit or loss. 

 Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) - This shows all the assets (the items 
which Council owns, or is owed) and liabilities (what Council owes to others). The difference 
between the value of Councils assets and its liabilities is called Community Equity, and the 
greater the Community Equity, the better financial position Council is in. 

 Statement of Changes in Equity - This shows the movements between the elements of 
Community Equity which are in the Balance Sheet. 

 Statement of Cash Flows - This shows the nature and amounts of cash inflows/outflows 
from the activities which Council is engaged in. 

 Financial Sustainability Ratios - These financial sustainability ratios provide a useful 
snapshot as to Councils ability to maintain its financial capital and infrastructure capital over 
the long term. 

 

Income Statement (Operating Position) 

The operating position reflects Council’s ability to meet its day to day running costs, 
including the ability to fund future purchase and replacement of assets (depreciation). The 
Operating position is calculated as below: 

 

Operating revenue – Operating Expense = Operating Surplus / Deficit (loss) 

 

The following graph shows Council’s Operating position over the last five years (2011-2012, 
2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-2016). 

From 2014-2015 to 2015-2016 Council’s operating position improved by $17,934,801. This 
is attributed to the following: 

 Income has increased by $8,721,012m (from $22,599,526 to $31,320,538), key items 
include: 

o $193,221 gain in rates, levies and charges revenue 
o $72,416 gain in fees and charges 
o $625,309 gain in rental income (mainly through contractors camp and donga 

accommodation bookings) 
o $2,017,208 gain in sales revenue (through infrastructure, building and 

maintenance works, and the sale of fuel and cement, sand and gravel) 
o $436,284 gain due to the revaluation of leases to the Department of Housing 

and Public Works and other income 
o $6,245,493 gain from the donation of assets and capital State government 

subsides and grants 
o $503,961 reduction in state government subsidies and grants 
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 Expenses have increased by $3,465,231 (from $19,337,874 to $22,802,805) due to 
an increase in employee, contractor, administration and material costs. 
 

 Council’s assets received an asset revaluation surplus of $5,053,658.  
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Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position) 

Assets (what we own and control) 

  

 

Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $4,790,093 

Trade and other receivables $2,828,911 

Inventories $424,170 

Other Financial Assets $3,721,067 

Non current - Property, plant and equipment $124,292,521 

Total Assets $136,056,762 

 

 

 

  

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

Trade and other 
receivables

Inventories

Other Financial 
Assets

Non current -
Property, plant and 

equipment

Current and Non Current Assets
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Liabilities (what we owe) 

 

 

Liabilities 

Trade and other payables $4,298,157 

Borrowings $2,122,117 

Provisions $180,809 

Total Liabilities $6,601,083 

 

Whilst there has been a gain in non-current assets of $14,130,869 (partially through 
donations and revaluations) there has been a reduction in current assets (cash, receivables 
and inventories) of $2,766,618.  

The total Community Equity of Council is $129,455,678 (Total Assets – Total Liabilities).  
This is an increase of $13,571,391 from 2014-2015.   

  

Current Liabilities-
Trade and other 

payables

Borrowings

Provisions

Current and Non Current Liabilities
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Statement of Changes in Equity (the net worth of Council) 

 

 

 

 

Statement of Cash Flows 
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Financial Sustainability Rations 

 

Section 179 (2) [c] of the Local Government Regulations 2012 requires a Local Government 
to include in its Community Financial Report the relevant Financial Sustainability Ratios for 
the current financial year. The Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience has published a Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline to assist 
Councils to properly calculate and record the Ratios. 

These financial sustainability ratios provide a useful snapshot as to Councils ability to 
maintain its financial capital and infrastructure capital over the long term. 

The following three Ratios have been included as part of Councils Annual Financial 
Statements for 2015-2016. 

 

 

  

Ratio Type Purpose of Ratio Calculation Overview 
Target 
Range 

2014-
2015 

2015-2016 

Operating 
Surplus Ratio 

This ratio is a measure of a local 
government’s ability to cover its 
operational costs and have revenues 
available for capital funding 
or other purposes. 

Net result (excluding capital items) 
divided by total operating revenue 
(excluding capital items) 

Between 
0% and 
10% 

-29% -28% 

Asset 
Sustainability 
Ratio 

This ratio indicates whether a local 
government is replacing or renewing existing 
non-financial assets at the same rate that its 
overall asset stock is wearing out 

Capital expenditure on the 
replacement of assets (renewals) 
divided by depreciation expense 

Greater 
than 90% 

145% 242% 

Net financial 
liabilities Ratio 

This ration is an indicator of the extent to 
which the net financial liabilities of a local 
government can be serviced by its operating 
revenues. 

Total liabilities less current assets 
divided by total operating revenue 
(excluding capital items) 

Not 
greater 
than 60% 

-23% -8% 



Your ref: 
Our ref: 2016-8213 

Charles Strickland 3149 6000 

14 March 2017 

Mr C Unwin 
Acting Chief Executive Officer 
Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
C/- Post Office 
KOWANYAMA OLD 4892 

Dear Mr Unwin 

General Purpose FinanciaiStatements-2015-16 
Current-year FinanciaiSustainability Statement- 2015-16 
• Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 

QAO 
Queensland Audit Office 

bolter p<Jblic sorWcc>s 

I enclose for your information the certified General Purpose Financial Statements as required by 
s.40(4) of the Auditor-General Act 2009. 

A modified auditor's report on Council's General Purpose Financial Statements was issued as 
Council was unable to provide sufficient appropriate evidence to support the reported revenue 
figures were complete and calculated accurately. Consequently, I am unable to and do not express 
an opinion on the amounts reported in Note 3 for the year ended 30 June 2016 for the following 
items: 

• recoverable works revenue - building and maintenance teams 

• rates, levies and charges 

• contract and recoverable works other 

• recreational services. 

In 2014-15, the Council was also unable to provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence that these, 
and other, revenue items were complete and accurate. Consequently, I am still unable to form, and 
do not express, an opinion on these comparative balances. 

Because of the limitation of scope on these revenue balances, I am also unable to express an 
opinion on the completeness and valuation of the trade debtors and accrued revenue receivables 
disclosed in Note 10 to the financial report for the years ending 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015. 

Council should ensure that it has systems and documentation to support the completeness and 
accuracy of revenue arising from these sources. 

Details of this modified audit opinion will be included in a future report to Parliament. 

Queensland Audit Office 
Level 14, 53 Albert Street, Brisbane Old 4000 

PO Box 15396, City East Old 4002 

Phone 07 3149 6000 

Email qao@qao.qld.gov.au 
Web www.qao.qldgov.au 



Also enclosed is the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement. Consistent with prior 
years and with all other councils, an emphasis of matter paragraph has been included in the 
auditor's report to highlight the use of the special purpose basis of accounting. This 
statement also received a modified auditor's report as Council was unable to provide 
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the completeness and accuracy of revenue as 
noted above. The reported revenue was used in the calculation of the operating surplus ratio 
and net financial liabilities ratio. 

Copies of both the General Purpose Financial Statements and Current Year Financial 
Sustainability Statement have also been forwarded to the Mayor and the Minister for Local 
Government, Minister for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships. 

~rnZ4~J~' 
Charles Strickland 
Director 

En c. 
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Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

' 

2016 2015 

Note s s 
Income 

Revenue 

Recurrent revenue 

Rates, levies and charges 3(a) 966,648 773,427 

Fees and charges 3(b} 444,725 372,309 

Rental income 3(c} 1,169,602 544,293 

Interest received 15,139 21,817 

Sales revenue 3(d} 6,899,515 4,882,307 

Other income 3(e) 1,340,675 904,391 

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4{a) 7,037,571 7,541,532 

17,873,875 15,040,076 

Capital revenue 

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b} 13,425,645 7,180,152 

Capital income 5 21 ,01 8 379,298 

Total capital revenue 13,446,664 7,559,450 

Total Income 31,320,538 22,599,526 

Expenses 

Recurrent expenses 

Employee benefits 6 (6,985,401 } (6,210,257) 

Materials and services 7 (1 0 ,011 ,580) (6,888,683) 

Finance costs (65,499) (73,636) 

Depreciation and amortisation 13 (5,740,326) (6,164,998} 

{22,802,805} (19,337 ,57 4} 

Capital expenses 8 (2,041 ,686} 

Total expenses (22,802,805) (21,379,260) 

Net result 8,517,733 1,220,265 

Other comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to net result 

(Decrease) I increase in asset revaluation surplus 13 5,053,658 (5,583,675) 

Total other comprehensive Income for the year 5,053,658 (5,583,675) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 13,571,391 (4,363,41 0) 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and S ignificant Accounting Policies. 



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Financial Position 
as at 30 June 2016 

2016 2015 
Note $ $ 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 9 4,790,093 7,556,711 
Trade and other receivables 10 2,625,353 922,115 
Inventories 11 424,170 881,731 
Other financial assets 12 113,643 110,199 
Total current assets 7,953;259 9,470,756 

Non-current assets 
Trade and other receivables 10 203,558 209,158 
Other financial assets 12 3,607,424 2,821,960 
Property, plant and equipment 13 124,292,521 109,424,019 
Total non-current assets 128,103,503 112,455,137 

Total assets 136,056,762 121 ,925,893 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 15 4,298,157 3,597,204 
Borrowings 17 171,082 2,162,690 
Provisions 16 126,945 165,374 
Total current liabilities 4,596,184 5,925,268 

Non-eu rrent liabilities 
Borrowings 17 1,951,035 
Provisions 53,864 116,338 
Total non-current liabilities 2,004,899 116,338 

Total liabilities 6,601,083 6,041,606 

Net community assets 129,455,678 115,884,287 

Community equity 
Asset revaluation surplus 13 68,997,516 63,943,858 
Retained surplus 60,458,162 51 ,940,429 

Total community equity 129,455,678 115,884,287 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies. 



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Changes In Equity 
as at 30 June 2016 

Balance as at 1 July 2015 

Net result 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Decrease in asset revaluation surplus 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Balance as at 30 June 2016 

Balance as at 1 July 2014 

Net result 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Increase in asset revaluation surplus 
Total comprehensive Income for the year 

Transfers to and from reserves 
Transfers to 1 from reserves* 
Total transfers to and from reserves 

3alance as at 30 June 2015 

*Transfers to and from reserves 

Asset 
revaluation 

surplus 

Nota 13 

$ 

63,943,858 

5,053,658 
5,053,658 

68,997,516 

69,527,533 

(5,583,675) 
(5,583,675} 

63,943,858 

Retained Unspent grant Total 
Surplus reserves 

$ $ $ 

51 ,940,429 115,684,287 

8,51 7,733 8,517,733 

5,053,658 
8,517,733 13,571,391 

60,458,162 129,455,678 

47,988 ,137 2 ,732,027 120,247,697 

1,220,265 1,220,265 

(5,583,675) 
1,220,265 (4,363,410} 

2,732,027 (2, 732,027) 
2,732,027 (2,732,027) 

51,940,429 115,884,287 

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal restrictions that limit the amount that is available for discretionary or future 
use. In prior years council accounted for these restrictions using general reserves. The unspent grants reserve represented grant funding that has 
been received by council for specific purposes but not yet expended in accordance with the funding agreement. 

During the 2014/15 financial year, Council passed a resolution to close all existing reserves and account for these restrictions using an internal 
management accounting system. 

All existing reserve balances were transferred to retained surplus as at 30 June 2015 . Internal restrictions that have been placed on council 's. cash 
and cash equivalents are now disclosed in Note 9. 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the scrompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Statement of Cash Flows 
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Cash ftows from operating activltles 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers and employees 

Interest received 
Rental income 
Non-capital grants and contributions 
Net cash Inflow 1 (outflow) from operating activities 

Cash tows from Investing activities 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 
Finance lease receipts 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 
Net cash Inflow from Investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from borrowings 
Borrowing costs 
Net cash Inflow from financing activities 

Net increase In cash and cash equivalent held 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of !he financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 

Note 

21 

12 

4(b) 

17 

9 

2016 

$ 

10,013,096 
(19,005 ,289) 

(8,992,193) 
15,139 

1,169,602 
7,037,571 

(769,881) 

{15,555,170) 
21,018 

t t1 ,770 

13,425,645 
(1,996, 737) 

(2,766,618) 

7,556,711 

4,790,093 

2015 

$ 

8,227,852 

(13,937 ,018) 

{5. 709, 166) 
21,817 

544,293 
7,541,532 

2,398,476 

(6,185,256) 
603,411 
110,199 

6,208,555 
736,909 

148,519 
(91,491) 

57 028 

3,192,413 

4,364,298 

7,556,711 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

Significant accounting policies 

1.a Basis of preparation 

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 and have been prepared in compliance 
with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012. Consequently, these 
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting 
I nterpretatlons and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board. Because the 
Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards Include requirements for not-for-profit entities which are 
Inconsistent with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are applied, these 
financial statements do not comply with I FRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and impairment gains and losses 
within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal grant revenue. 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain non
current assets, and other financial assets whfch are measured at fair value. 

The Council uses the Australian dollar as Its functional currency and its presentation currency and rounds to the nearest dollar. 

Recurrent/capital classification 

Revenue and expenditure are presented as ' recurrent" and 'capital" In the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the following 
basis: 

Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies which are tied to specific projects for the replacement or upgrade of existing non
current assets and/ore investments in new assets. It also includes non·cash contributions which are usually infrastructure assets 
received from developers. 

The following transactions are classified as either "Capital Income• or "Capital Expenses" depending on whether they resuH in 
accounting gains or losses: 

- Disposal of non-current assets 
• Revaluation of property, plant and equipment and finance leases 

All other revenue and expenses have been classified as "recurrent•. 

1.b Constitution 

The Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in 
Australia. 

1.c Currency 

The council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency. 

1.d Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards 

In the current year, council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period . The adoption of the new 
and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any material changes to council's accounting policies. 

Council has not applied any Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective 
with the exception of AASB 2015·7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Entities . Generany Council applies standards and interpretations in accordance with their respective commencement 
dates. The retrospective application of AASB 2015·7 has exempted Council from the disclosure of quantitative information and 
sensitivity analysis for some valuations categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, AASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2015·6 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standatds- Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Ssctor Entities are the only new 
accounting standards with a future application date that are expected to have a material impact on Council's financial statements. 
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Notes to the financial statements 
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1.d 

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement , is effective for report ing periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of AASB 9 is to change the 
requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with financial assets. Under the new requirements the 
four current categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 139 will be replaced with two measurement categories: fair value and 
amortised cost and financial assets will only be able to be measured at amortised cost where very specific conditions are met. To 
date no impact has been identified. 

From 1 July 2016 AASB 124 ReiBted Party Disclosures will apply to council, which means that council will disclose more 
information about related parties and transactions with those related parties. 

Council is still reviewing the way that revenue is measured and recognised to identify whether AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers will have a material impact. To date no impact has been identified. 

AASB 15 is effective from 1 January 2018 and will replace AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts and a number 
of Interpretations. It contains a comprehensive and robust framework for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of revenue 
from contracts with customers. 

The amended Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which were issued at the date of authorisation of the financial 
report, but have future commencement dates are not likely to have a material impact on the financial statements. 

1.& Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant. 

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement 
notes: 

Fair value assessments of property, plant and equipment- Note 13 and Note 14 
Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment- Note 13 
Valuation of finance leases - Note 14 
Contingencies - Note 19 

1.f Financial assets and financial liabilities 

Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, council 
becomes a party to the contnactual provisions of the instrument. 

Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial 
liabilities held at balance date as follows: 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 
Receivables • measured at amortised cost (Note 10) 
Other financial assets (finance leases) - measured at fair value (Note t 2) 

Financial liabilities 
Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 15) 

Provisions - measured at fair value (Note 16) 

Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (Note 17) 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not been applied. 

l .g Leases 

Operating leases 
Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal ilstalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, 
except where an a~ernative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property. 

t.h Taxation 
Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benefits Tax and 
Goods and Services Tax ('GST'). The net amount of GST recoverable f rom the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset 
or liability respectively. 



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

2 Analysis of Results by Function 

2(a) Components of council functions 

The activities relating to the council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows : 

Community services 
Community services and facilities including cultural, health, welfare, environmental and recreational services. 

This function includes:-

* Airport 

" Animal management program 

"Bakery 

* Childcare centre 
* Centrelink agency 
• Women's shelter 

Home and community care program 

• Environmental health 

* Management of the home and community care program 
* Post Office agency 

• Recreation services 

* Rental fac~ities 

The objective of the home and community care function is the management of the program in providing a 
comprehensive, coordinated and integrated range of basic maintenance. support and care services for frail older people 
and their carers. 

Corporate governance 

This comprises the support functions for the Mayor and Councillors, council and committee meetings and statutory 
requirements. 

Corporate services 
The support functions of Management of the council's finance, information technology and administration. 

This function includes:-

Finance 

Information Technology 
Administration 

Building services 

Training 

Building services 

Workshop 

Provision of public housing within the DOG IT area and maintenance of council buildings. 

Lend management 
Provision of land and river management and cultural awareness. 

Roads 
Providing and maintaining local and access roads and drainage. 

water and sewerage Infrastructure 
Providing water supply services. 

Providing sewerage services. 

Providing refuse collection and disposal services. 
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2 Analysis of results by !unction 
(b) lncoma and up.,.u defined batween recurring and capital are ettrlbutod to the following funcdona: 

Year ended 30 June 2016 
Functions Gross program income Total Gross program e1<penses 

Rec orrent 0011[ i1come Recur reo( Caoilal 
Grants Other Grants Other 
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 

$ $ $ $ $ $ s 
omrnunity sBIVIces 930,225 2,034,224 126,866 - 3.091 ,315 (2,997,169) 

HACC program 944,866 133,279 - 1,on.s45 (1,549,798) 
Corporate governance - - (313,623) 
Corporate services 3,717,498 2,641,777 2,419,138 21,018 8,799,429 (10,562,020) 
Bt.J:dtng services 5,128.979 89.375 5,216,354 (4,944,41KJ 
Land management 999,310 402.776 1,402,086 (1,168,894 
Roeds 365,874 495.270 10,731,676 11 .592.820 (538.415) 

Water and ·-• 80,000 58,590 136.590 (727,208) 
inf!astructure 

Tolal cour.cll 7,037,571 10,636.305 13 ,"125,645 21,016 31,32M39 (22,602.605) 

Yoar ended 30 June 2015 
FllncUons Gross program iocome Total Gmos program expenses 

Recurring Capital income Recuuing Capilal 
Grancs Other Granto Other 
2015 2015 2015 2015 2016 2015 2015 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

CDEP programs i6.733 
c~rornunity services 700,221 1,689,216 3,361,929 5,751,366 (2,538,655) (944,057) 
HACC program 978,585 70,444 - 1,049.029 (939.609) 
Corporate g"""'nence - - (307,052) 
Corporoto aeJVioea 3,758,047 1,313,743 971,597 379,2SB 8,420.685 (10,407,476) (1,097,629 
B ullding aervtces - 3,841,112 - 3.641,112 (3,154,586) 
Land manegoment 639,1119 911,133 - 1.650,332 (1,149,649) 
Roads 961,900 (227.104) 2,726.259 3.461,055 (85,210 
Weter & sewerage 305,580 120,367 425,947 (749,622) 
inf;astructure 

Total council 7,541,532 7,498,543 7,160,152 379,298 22.599,525 (19.337.574) (2,041,686) 

Total Net resuk Nel Assm 
EO<I)erl$eS from recurrent Result 

operaions 
2016 2016 2016 2016 

$ $ $ $ 
(2,997, 189 (32,720) 94,148 16,185,571 
(1,549,796) 471,851) (471,851) 1,855,408 

(313,823) (313,623) (313,823) 3,843,614 
(10,562,020) (4,202,747) (1,762,591) 7,736,065 

(4,944,460 164,498 273,874 62,708,910 
(1,169,894) 232.192 232,192 1,181,569 

(538,415) 322.729 11.064.405 33,ll29,424 
(727.206) (647,2011) (~.818) 9,516.201 

(22,802,805) (4,928,1121l) 8.517,733 1 36,056,762 

Tolal Net resul Net Assets 
e>q>enses l rom ,..,.....ing Result 

opemt;ons 
2015 2015 2015 2015 

$ s $ $ 

6,733) (6,733) (6,733) 
(3,482,712) (149,218) 2,268.654 19,605,536 

(938.609 110,420 110,420 1,951.902 
(307,052) (307,052) (307.052) 124,980 

i11 ,505.107) (5,337.1188) (6,094,422) 12,586,656 
(3,154,566) 866,546 688.548 60,170,061 
(1,149,649) 500,683 500,683 1,663,531 

(85,210) 649,586 3,375,645 16,264,375 
(749,622) (444,042] (323,675) 9,508.648 

(21.379,260) (4,297,499) 1,220.265 121.925,893 
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Note 
2016 

$ 
2015 

$ 
3 Revenue 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Rate monies and community levies are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are received. 

Rates, levies and charges 

Community general service levy 554,580 568,646 

Community support fund 30,268 56,332 

Rates 381,800 148,449 . 

966.648 n~,427 

Fees and charges 

Aged care home 133,279 70,443 

Community fines 18,480 15,756 

Bank, post office, commissions 68,172 101,446 

Airport landing fees 224,793 161 ,982 

Camping fees 22,682 

444,725 372,309 

Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon lodgement of the 
relevant applications or documents, issuing of the infringer.1ent notice or when the service is provided. 

Rent 
Contractors camp 495,270 50,182 
Donga accommodation 393,932 273,279 
Canteen 118,000 112,000 
Other rent 162,400 108,832 

1,169,602 544,293 

Sales reve!1ue 

Sale of servicas 
Contract ar.d recoverable works- building & maintenance taams 4,451,846 3,261,666 

Contract ar.d recoverable works - other 363,422 171,753 

Recreation services 10,618 
4,815,268 3,444,037 

Sale of goods 

Aviation fuel 559,972 340,488 

Post office 145,666 88,803 

Bakery 273,306 289,824 

Cement, sand and gravel 812,187 411,759 

Power card sales 293,116 307,396 
2,084,247 1,438,270 

Total sales revenue 6,899,515 4,882,307 

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, generally 
when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods. 

The council generates revenues from a number of services including contracts for road and earthworks , building 
maintenance services and motor vehicle repairs. Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a 
recoupmen~ of material costs together with an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue 
and associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting 
date. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity. Where 
consideration is received for the service in advance it is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue In the 
period when the service is performed. 

Other Income 
Trainee and apprentice subsidies 31 ,927 

Equipment hire 525 66,286 
Cost recoveries 28,744 (14,670) 

Administration fee 7,673 165,943 

Gain on revaluation of finance leases 12 900,678 
Other income 106,728 74,832 

Carbon Credits 264,400 612,000 
1,340,675 904,391 
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4 Grants, subsidies, contributions 
and donations 

(a) Recurrent 
State government subsidies and grants 
Commonwealth government subsidies and grants 
Other subsidies and grants 

(b) Capital 
State government subsidies and grants 
Commonwealth government subsidies and grants 
Contributions 

Note 
2016 

$ 

3,449,724 
3,587,847 

7,037,571 

11 ,307,303 

2,118,343 
13,425,645 

2015 
$ 

3,897,314 
3,643,018 

1,200 
7,541 ,532 

6,208,555 

971 ,597 
7,180,152 

Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in which 
council obtains control over them. 

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various performance obligations 
under the funding agreement are fulfilled . Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants. 

Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue and as non
current assets. Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses. 

Physical assets contributed to council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater, water and wastewater 
infrastructure and park equipment are recognised as revenue when the development becomes 'on maintenance' o.e. 
the council obtains control of the assets and becomes liable for any ongoing maintenance) and there is sufficient data 
in the form of drawings and plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of such assets. Ail non-cash 
contributions are recognised at the fair value of the contribution received on the date of acquisition 

Conditions over contributions 

Contributions recognised as income during the reporting period and which were obtained on the condition that they be 
expended in a manner specified by the contributor but had not been expended at the reporting date: 

Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on services 2,577,564 
Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on infrastructure 201 ,037 

5 Capital Income 

Gain on disposal of non-current 
assets 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 

Less: Book value of property, plant and equipment disposed of 

Total capital income 

2,778,601 

21,018 

21,018 
21,018 

1,113,128 
2,039,242 
3,152,370 

603,411 

{224,113) 
379,298 
379,298 
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6 Employee benefits 

Total staff wages and salaries 
Councillors' remuneration 

Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 

Superannuation 

Other employee related expenses 

2016 

Note $ 

5,313,507 
311,472 
412,615 

20 581,464 
6,619,058 

366,344 

6,985,401 

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties. 

Total council employees at the 2016 
reporting date: 

Elected members 5 
Administration staff 17 
Council and Community Services 77 
Total full time equivalent employees 99 

7 Material• and sarvices 
Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of (8,171) 
Queensland * 
Audit fees - other 38,521 
Administration supplies and other expenditure 1,194,534 
Bad debts written off 2,442 
Contractors and services providers 3,429,716 

Contracts & recoverable works 14,680 
Grants refunded 519,843 
Hire of plant and equipment 223,648 
Insurance 500,793 
Other materials and services 3,298,152 
Rates, taxes and utilities 45,505 

Rent 45,076 
Repairs and maintenance 882,660 
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts (517,000) 
Travel costs 313,900 
Vehicle and plant operating costs 27,280 

10,011,580 

2015 

$ 

4,636,315 

296,147 
534,659 

534,169 
6,001 ,290 

208,967 
6,210,257 

2015 

5 
14 

70 

89 

137,558 

29,050 

700,677 

2,603,109 

1,815 

842 
548,391 

1,550,014 
287, 137 

144,952 

513,631 

171,472 
200,035 

6,888,683 

*There was an over accrual for audit fees reported in the 2015 financial statements. The 2015 statements were not 
signed until November 2015 and the 20t 5/16 audit did not commence until this time. Accordingly, there has been no 
accrual recorded for 2015/16 audit fees on the basis that the work was not performed until post 30 June 2016. 

8 Capital expenses 

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 
Less: Book value of property, plant and equipment disposed of 

Capital write-off 

Other capital expenses 
Loss on revaluation of finance 

Total capital expenses 

944,057 

944,057 

1,097,629 

1,097,629 

2,041 ,686 
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2016 2015 
Note $ $ 

9 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash at bank 4,574,331 7,364,088 

10 

Cash on hand 
Deposits at call 

Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date 
relate to the following cash assets: 

Unspent government grants and subsidies 
Total unspent restricted cash 

214,430 
1,331 

4,790,093 

2,778,601 
2,778,601 

147,559 
45,064 

7,556,711 

3,152,370 

3,152,370 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end and 
deposits held at call with financial institutions. 

Deposits at call are held with the Queensland Treasury Corporation which is unconditionally guaranteed by the 
Queensland Government. 

Trade and other rece!vables 

Current 
Trade debtOfs 1,914,643 1,124,722 

Loan to Kowanyama Cattle Co Pty Ltd 150,000 150,000 
Less Impairment (342,000) (859,000) 
Accrued revenue 307,564 
GST receivable 83,185 
Prepayments 511,961 506,393 

2,625,353 922,115 

Non-current 

Prepaid pastoral lease costs 203,558 209,158 
203,558 209,158 

Loan to Kowanyama Cattle Co Ply Ltd 150,000 150,000 

Trade receivables relating to Kowanyama Cattle Co Pty Ltd 463,438 
150,000 613,438 

No interest is charged on trade and other debtors. There Is some geographical concentration of credit risk as a result of 
debts owed by community residents and community based entities. 

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase 
price I contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required wflhin 30 days from invoice date. 

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence that council will not be able 
to collect all amounts due, the carrying amount is reduced for impairment. The loss is recognised in finance costs. 
The amount of the impairment Is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate. 

All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off in the same 
period are recognised as finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. If an amount is recovered in a 
subsequent period it is recognised as revenue. 
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10 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 

Movement in accumulated impairment losses (other debtors) is as follows: 

Opening balance at 1 July 
Additional impairments (reversed) I recognised 
Closing balance at 30 June 

Note 
2016 

$ 

859,000 
(517,000) 
342,000 

2015 

$ 

880,000 
(21 ,000} 

The following represents an analysis of the age of the council's financial assets that are either fully performing, past 
due or impaired: 

30-Jun-16 

Receivables 

Less impainnent 
Net Receivables 

30-Jun-15 

Receivables 

Less impainnent 
Net Receivables 

Fully 
per1ormlng 

$ 

1,367,044 

1,367,044 

Fully 
per1orming 

$ 

140,388 

140,388 

Past due 

30·60 days 61-90 days 

$ $ 

58,206 46,847 

58.206 46,847 

Past due 

30·60 days 61·90days 
$ $ 

6£,073 17,416 

66,073 17,416 

Over90 days Total 

$ s 

983,294 2,455,392 

(342,000) (342,000) 

641,294 2,113,392 

Over 90 days Total 
s $ 

1,050,845 1,274,722 

(859,000) (859,0il0} 
191,845 415,722 

Key factors in considering whether or not a debt was impaired included the age of the debt. business failure and debtor 
disputes. 
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2016 2015 
Note $ $ 

11 Inventories 

Inventories held for sale 
Aviation fuel 28,807 88,063 
Bakery 18,404 14,354 
Power cards 7,560 21,221 
Other trading stocks 19l88 181065 

74 559 141 703 

Inventories held for distribution 
Diesel fuel 72,679 37,067 
Plant and equipment stores 231,151 578,183 
Workshop . 451781 124 778 

349,610 7401028 

Total inventories 4114,170 ~1,731 

Stores and raw materials held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where 
applicable, direct material, direct labour and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. Costs are assigned 
on the basis of weighted average cost. 

Inventories held for distribution are: 
- goods to be supplied at no or nominal, charge, and 
- goods to be used for the provision of services at no or nominal, charge. 
These goods are valued at cost, adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential. 
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12 
Note 

Other financial assets 

Current 
Finance leases 

Non-current 
Finarn:e leases 

A reconcmation between the gross investment in the lease and the fair value of lease 
payments is as follows: 
Gross minimum lease payments 
Not later than one year 
Later than one year but not later 
Later than fiVe years 
Add: Estimated contingent rent 
Less: Present value adjustment 
Fair value of lease payments 

The fair value of lease payments are receivable as follows: 
Not later than one year 
Later than one year but not tater 
Later than five years 

Movements in f inance leases were as follows: 
Opening balar.ce 
Less: Lease receipts 
Add: (Loss) I gain on revaluation 
Closing balance 

2016 
$ 

113.643 
113.643 

316071424 
3,§Q7,424 

113,643 
454,573 

31612,297 
4,180,513 
2,552,037 

(3,01 1.482) 
3.721,067 

113,643 
446,809 

3,160.615 
3,721,067 

2,932,160 
(111 ,770) 
9001677 

3,721 067 

2015 
$ 

11 0 199 
110 199 

218211960 
2,821,~0 

110,199 
440,796 

3,613,026 
4,164,021 
1,396,833 
(2,628.694) 
2,932,160 

11 0,199 
418,709 

2A03,252 
2,932,160 

4,139,988 
(110, 199) 

(1.097.629) 
2.932,160 

Council has !eased 38 dwellings as lessor to the Queensland Government for 40 years. The total lease payment per 
dwelling in the current year was $3,041 for properties under a first lease agreement entered into in 201011 1 (6 
properties for $2,947 in 2014-15) and $2,882 for properties under a second lease agreement entered into ir. 2013/14 
(32 properties for $2,800 in 2014-15). These lease payments are required to be adjusted each year by the change In 
the Consumer Price Index (All Groups) for Brisbane. As tha gross lease payments a re insufficient to cover the fair 
value (depreciated replacement cost) of the leased properjes, there is no interest rate implicit in the leases and 
therefore no finance income will arise from the leases. Consequently, the leases are recognised at the present value of 
the expected future lease payments receivable (fair value). 

The calculation of fair value has included an estimate of average annual CPI increases of 2.5% (1 .5% in the prior year) 
and a discount rate of 3.21% (3.63% in the prior year). 

There is n~ unearned finarn:e income, unguaranteed residual values accruing to the benefit of council, accumulated 
allowance for uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable or contingent rents recognised as income applicable to 
the leases. 

Finance leases are to the State of Queensland, represented by the Department of Communities. The likelihood of this 
counterparty not having capacity to meet its financial commitments is considered low. 

Movements on revaluation of finance lease assets are recognised as other income/expenses. 
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l:l. Proporty, piMI oncl oquipment 

30June2016 

B9$is ot rneasuremenl 
Asset valuea 
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2015 
Additions 
Work :n pn.gress Dn.sWred 
RevM.Iation adju.tm~nt to ISlet revaluadon auJplus 
Writo-<>ft of wot!< In prov'"• 
Clofting grcss value aiM 30 Jun• 201ti 

AccUtMJiated depredation and impalttn.nl 
Open'ng balance as ar 1 July 2015 
Oepreelatlon provided In period 
Revaluation adjustment to asset revalualior'l surplus 
AGeumut.ted depncl.Uon •• at 30 Jun• 2011 

Tot.t written down ftllut •• at 30 .)qno 2016 

Rang-e of tiitimated usefUJ life in years 

Additions comprill•: 

Aenewalt 
Other .a'dhions 
Total •dditlona: 

Opening balance 1 July 2015 
Asset :evaluation movement 
Closing blllcnce 3D Jll'lt 2016 

Not& Butldlnv• R&eldlntlll 
houolnv 

FaK Value Fai.-Vafue 
$ $ 

40,136,792 97,246,600 
78,545 264,7&9 
40,06$ 

B03 012 1,1129,389 

41,058 4118 99,4®,851 

12. 

264,789 
118,614 
,,e,et4 264,7&9 

20,024,659 35,315.136 
3,137,804 405,049 

23,182 ,463 35,720,185 

Plant& Motor Fumltura and 
equipment vehicles and fittings 

heavy 
equipment 

Co$1 Cost Coot 

$ $ $ 
1,586,5157 934,400 484,978 

287,282 296,682 39,638 
39,1n 57,11111 

1,893,02G 1,23"f ,082 581,781 

1,319,985 7S0.188 319,:196 
132,522 171,934 105,700 

66,057 
326,459 296,881 30,745 
326,459 296,681 96,803 

Roads, w- Sewerage Othor Wort< In Total 
drainage and lrlrutructure progrw:IS 

cutvons ...... 
Fair Value FeirVetue Fe.lr varv. Fair Value Cost 

$ $ $ $ $ s 
65,049,374 8,207,720 8,040.371 6,443,885 1,680,645 229,791,425 
13,366,836 138,576 281.519 105,830 n4:<72 15,634,049 
1,028,752 - (1,165,163) 

11529.315 111907 150.026 2,129,813 6335,186) 
{78,879 (78.879 

67,917,647 8.528,203 8,472,0HI 8,679,528 1,210,875 239,011,429 

49,224,630 4 ,138.058 1,300,704 120,967,400 
344,356 5,740,326 
104,828 (11,388,824 

4,587,240 114 718,908 

124,292,521 

$ 
12,1152,285 12,983,111 

1,745,303 136,576 281,819 105,830 (390 ,890) 2,650,937 
14,397,588 136.576 281,6,9 105830 (390,89 15,634,049 

6,994,596 1,813.161 470.418 (474.112) 63,943,858 
2,194,967 115,155 45,202 (1144,619) 5,053,858 
9,189,583 1,728,318 516.820 (1,318,631)1 111,!197,518 
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30June2D15 

Basls ot measu-ement 
As.aet veru.s 
Open·~n g gfoss vaJue as It 1 July 2014 
Additions 
o·oposal• 
Revak.lalion adjosaTierlt So a sset revatuaUon swplu$ 
Transfll'& bMwe«1 ctuHa 
CJoalng gro•• Ylllure .. l't 30 June 2011 

AccumulatMt deprtuclation and lmpalrmellt 
Opening balanc. as a1 1 July 201 4 
Depreciation provided 'n period 
Depreciation on dlsposals 
Revaluation adjuiUT'lentto asset revt~~luatton surplus 
Auumuteted deprwilltton 11 lit 30 June 2011" 

Tdll-down ...... Milt 30.luM 2015 

Range ot estimated usefUl life in yeers 

Addition• eornpriM: 

R enewal& 

Other oddi1iooa 
lotal additions 

Opening balance 1 July 2014 
Asset revaluation mavement 
Closing balance 3tJ June 2015 

Note Building$ Residenti al 
hou.ing 

Fa.~rVakJe Fair Value 
$ $ 

40,648,501 96,654,300 
841 , 123 267,250 

(1.714,000) (630 ,000) 
356 184 955,143 

4,1)84 
40,136 7U2 97,240,6SIS 

20,293,332 38,085,768 
1,083.760 2.431,105 

(1,326,4 {426,1506) 
158,297 417,227 

20 ,208,902 40,507,514 

$ $ 
785,5!>11 
55,565 287,250 

841,123 267,250 

s 
19,826,782 34,777.220 

197,897 537.918 
20,024,659 35,315,136 

Plant& Motor Fumitoreand 
equlpmont vehicles and fillings 

heavy 
equipment 

Cost Cost Coot 
$ $ $ 

1,556,2611 1,127,961 409.562 
10,298 42,978 75,416 

(~.539) 

1,566,507 934 400 4&4.978 

1,159,98!1 815,211 234,;112 
159,998 1711,727 fiS,084 

(235,770) -
-

1,319,U65 750,188 319,;11)8 

184,232: 165,582 

3 4 S - 10 

s s $ 

7.727 
10,298 42,978 117,689 

10 298 42,978 75,416 

Roads, Water Sewerage Ollltl WOfk In Total 
drainage and lnfi'BB1nlcture progreu 

cu!vens uaets 

Fan Vahle fairVal.le Fa.rValue FoirVa!ue Cost 
s $ s $ $ $ 

67,712.762 8,266,820 7,746,688 5,726,608 119,016 229,968,487 
525,880 359,207 387,87:1 2,966,184 1,680,644 7,156,853 

- (1.951 ,542) (4.532.081) 
(3,1811,268) (411,307) (V4,190) (411.3911) (2.81)1,834 

114,D31 (11U,015) 
85,049,374 8,207,720 8,040 371 6,443 885 1,680,648 229,791,425 

47,026,898 2,714,576 3,590.673 863,a911 114,784,478 
1.337,:!94 217,988 375,231 =.aN 6,364,254 

(1,375.058) (3,363,911) 
860 338 (334,515 172 154 1,30Q,084 2 582 575 

46,224,830 UQ8,046 4,138,058 1,300,704 120,;187,408 

1,680,645 109,424,019 

s $ $ $ $ s 
499,657 217,897 330,206 2,966184 1,593,053 0,400,284 

26,223 141,310 57,665 87,591 756.569 
525,880 359,207 387 873 2.-.184 1,680644 7,156,853 

s s s 
11,178,756 1,696,953 736,782 1,311.080 
(4,184,150) (83.792) (266.344) 
6 994 596 1Ji13,16~ 470,41S (474 112 
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment loss. Items of property, plant and equipment with a total value of Jess than $3,000 are treated as 
an expense in the year of acquisition. All other ttems of property, plant and equipment are capitalised. 

The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the council are: 

Buildings 
Residential housing 
Plant and Equipment 
Motor vehicles and heavy equipment 
Furniture and ftttings 
Infrastructure:· 

Road, drainage and culverts 
Water 
Sewerage 

Other infrastructure assets 
Work in progress 

Acquisition of assets 

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration 
plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and engineering design fees and all other 
establishment costs. 

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by 
council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds tor the respective asset class. Fair value means the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabiltty in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date. 

Capital and operating expenditure 

Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are 
treated as capital expenditure. Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and commissioned, at 
which time they are reclassified from work in progress to the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment. 

Valuation 

Buildings, residential housing and all infrastructure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance 
with AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. Other plant and equipment, motor 
vehicles and heavy equipment, furniture and fittings and work In progress are measured at cost. 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of 
asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independent, 
professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each class of buildings, residential housing and infrastructure 
assets at least once every 3 years. This process involves the valuer physically sighting a representative sample of counc~ 
assets across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection. 

In the Intervening years, council engages independent, professionally qualified valuers to perform a desktop valuation. A 
desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes 
in assumptions such as useful life and condition rating. The valuer then determines suitable indices which are applied to each 
of these asset classes. 

Any revaluation Increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation 
surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A 
decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the 
revaluation surplus of that asset crass. 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately wtth the change in the carrying amount of the asset and 
any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the asset revaluation 
surplus and not transferred to retained surplus. 
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to wh ich they relate. 

Details of valuers and methods of valuations are disclosed in Note 14. 

Cacital work In proaress 

The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased services, materials. 
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment assets is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or 
revalued amount of each depreciable asset progressively over its estimated useful life to the council. Management believe that 
the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all council assets. 

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is 
completed and commissioned ready for use. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned 
useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or 
service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the 
asset to the council. 

Depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, 
technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of the annual 
valuation process for assets measured at depreciated current replacement cost are used to estimate the remaining usef~.:llives 
of these assets at each reporting date. 

Deed of Grant in Trust Land 

The council is located on land assigned to it under a Deed of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) under Section 341 of the Land Act 1994. It 
comprises an area of approximately 252,000 hectares. 

The land is administered by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines and the council has restricted use of this land for 
the benefit of shire inhabitants. The DOG IT land has not been taken up in the council's assets as it cannot be reliably 
measured. 

A portion of the DOGIT land (2,477 M2) is leased to the State Government pursuant to the Indigenous Housing Arrangement 
(40 year lease). 

Impairment of non-current assets 

Each non-current physical assets is assessed for indicators of impairment annually. If an indicator of possible impairment 
exists , the Council determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the 
recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and equipment that do not 
result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their 
initial recognition are accumulated In the asset revaluation surplus. Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a 
class of assets. When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus and not transferred to retained surplus. 

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset 
revaluation surplus in respect of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense. 
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14 Fair value measurements 

(l) Recognised fair value measurement. 

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair valu" on a recurring besis: 

Property, plant and equipment 

- Buildings 

- Residential housing 

Roads, drainage and culverts 

Water 

Sewerage 

Other infrastructure assets 

Other financial assets 

Council does not me¥ure any liabilities Ill fair value on a recurring basis. 

Counci has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other notes. 

Council borrowings are meawred at amortised cost wfth interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The fair value of borrowings disclosed in 
note 17 is provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation and represents the contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date. (Level2). 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature {Level2}. 

CouncU also has finance lease assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis under other financial assets. These assets relate to the 
housing leases in place to the Queensland Government for 40 years. 

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis: 

- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets tor identical assets or liabilties (level 1) 

- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liabJlfty Oevel2) 

- Fair value based on unobservable Inputs for the asset and liabilfty Oevel 3) 

The folowing table categorises fair value measurements as eittler level2 or levelS il accordance with AASB t 3. Counci does not have any 
assets or iabil~ies measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1 . 

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techrnques which maximise the use of observable data, where ft is available, and 
minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant input& required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset Ia included in lev,l2. If 
one or more of the signilicant Inputs Is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for counci buidngs and 
infrastructure assets, which are of a specia~st nature tor which there is no active market l or s imilar or identical assets. These assets are valued using 
a combination of observable and unobservable inputs. 

The table presents the councirs assets and iabii ties measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2016. Comparative ilformation has r.ol 
been provided ~s allowed by the transitional provisions o: AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. 

At 30 June 2016 

RecuiTing fair value meaeurements 

Buildings 

Hesidential housing 

Roads, drainage and culverts 

Water 

Sewerage 

Other infrastructure assets 

Diller financial assets 

Note 

13 

13 

13 

13 

13 

13 

12 

Level 3 

(Significant unobservable inputs) 

s s 
2016 2015 

22,081,573 19,927,890 

54,954,103 56,739,179 

31,460.310 15,824,744 

5,631.424 5,609,671 

3 ,884.778 3,902,313 

4.163,335 5,143,18 1 

3,721,067 2,932,160 

125,896,590 110,079,138 

There were no transfers between categories during the year (2015: none). 

Total 

$ 

2016 

22.08 1,573 

54,954 ,103 

31 ,460,310 

5,631 ,424 

3,884.778 

4,163,335 

3,721,067 

125 ,896,590 

Counc~s poNcy Is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting perjod. 

$ 

2015 

19,927,B90 

56,739,179 

15.824.744 

5 ,609,571 

3,902,313 

5,t43,181 

2,932,1 60 

110,079,t3B 
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14 Fair value measurements (continued) 

(ii) Valuat ion techniques uaed to derive felr values for level 2 and level 3 valua1iona 

Specific valuation techniques used to value c:ouncH .. seta comprise: 

Significant unobservable Inputs 

Condition 

Prior remaining l~e information 

Known age; and 

Estimated age 

Buildings and residential housing (level 3) 

Tha fair value of buUdings and residential housing has been derived from a desktop revaluation performed by AssetVal Ply Lid as at 30 June 2016. 

There is no market for council's buildings as these assets are of a specialist nature and there is no active market as they are held to provide essential 
services to the community. For the purpose of assessing the "fair value" for fmancial reporting purposes value has been determined primarily by using 
the depreciated current replacement cost methodology. Construction costs are based on published construction cost guides and construcfion costs 
provided by the Department of Communities of homes buin within remote communities in recent years. Considerations in the calculations have been 
the type and the size of the structure, construction materials used, level of finish, fixtures instafted within, and the location of the asset As the subject 
structures are located in a regional are~. somewhat removed from the nearest provincial city of Calms, and far removed from Queensland's capital 
city of Brisbane, a cost increase over and above that applicable to the nearest provincial city or in .relation to Brisbane Cost Index Is necessary to 
account for the increase in replacement cost due to transportation of labour and materials from the nearest supply centre and also the cost of hoosiog 
speciai'ISed labour and contractors necessary for the construction work. 

Current replacement costs for the buildings have been comp~ed by reference to actual costs incurred for some of the subject assets, for similar asset 
improvements constructed within the North Queensland Region, and also supported by reference to ava~abkl data prepared and provided by 
construction cost consultants and quantity surveyors. Costs have been indexed to account for the location of the subject properties baing away from 
the major supply cenlnls or due to being In a different location to soma of the other assets recently cons1ructed. 

The indexation assessment by AssetVal in 2016 was based on inputs from producer price data, construction indices and recent construction cost 
guides. These were analysed by determining the movement between 1 July 2015 and 30 June 2016 and include the Non-Residential, Residential and 
Other Residential categories from Costweb, together w~h the regional building price index for all construction from Rawlinsons Australian Construction 
Handbook. 

With Cairns being the nearest regional c«y to Kowanyama ~ reiabkl construction costs movement data, AssetVal applied the Caims construction 
cost movements for the bu~ding assets of the Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Cour~eil. Over a range of bu~ding types such as cMd care centres, day 
surgery, multi-purpose centre, administration accommodation and industrial purpose buildings, construction costs indices for Caims varied from a 
contraction of 1.87% for warehouse units, small span and high bay to a high of 2.09% for construction of a day surgery. Excluding the outiners of the 
indices, fihe range was tightened to 1.96% to 2.04%. 

Noting the different types ol buildings in the Council asset register, the majority ofthe buildings types would be included In the previously mentioned 
range of 1.96% to 2.04%. Consequently, for the replacement eost of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Couneii 'Non-Resiclentlal' and 'Residential' 
buildings an overall increase of 2.0% has been adopted. 

Condition codes 

Condition scale Description of asset condition Percentage of remaining lite 
0 Brand new or rehabilitated to new with no visible 100% 

deterioration. 

I Near new with no visible deterioration. 90% 

2 Excellent overall early stages of deterioration. 80% 

3 Very good overaU condition with obvious 70% 
deterioration evident. 

4 Good overall condition, obvious deterioration, 60% 
serviceabiroty inpaired very sUghtly. 

5 Fair overall condition, obvious deterioration, some 50% 
serviceability loss. 

6 Fair to poor overal condition, obvious 40% 
deterioration, some serviceability loss, high 

7 Poor overall condHion, obvious deterioration, some 30% 
serviceabiity loss, high maintenance costs. 

8 Very poor overall c:ond~ion, severe deterioration, 20% 
some serviceability loss, very high maintenance 
costs. Consider renewal. 

9 Extremely poor condition, severe serviceability 10% 
problems. Renewal required immediately. 

10 Failed asset, no longer serviceable. Shoold not 0% 
remain in service. 

QAO 
ce;;.i;led sta~emenr-=; 
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14 Fair value measurements (continued) 

lnlnlstructure asaets (level 3) 

All council infrastructtJre assets were fair valued using written down current replacement cost. This valuation comprises the asset's current 
replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or el<pired future 
economic benefits of the asset. Council irst determined the gross cost of replacing the lui service potential of the asset and then adjusted this 
amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset 

CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained in the nonnal 
cou"e of business. Where existing assets were over designed, had excess capacity, or were redundant an adjustment was made so that the 
n!sutting valuation relected the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of modem equivalent assets to achieve the 
required level of senrice o.utput within the council's planning horizon. 

The fair value of infrastructtJre assets has been derived from a desktop revaluation performed by AssetVal Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2016. 

There is no market for counc;oTs infrastructure assets as these are held to provide essential services to the community. For the purpose of assessing 
the fair value for financial reporting purposes value has been determined primarily by using the depreciated current replacement cost methodology. 
Considerations in the calculations have been the type and the size of the individual infrastructure assets, construction materials used, level of finish, 
~xtures installed within, and the location of the assets. As the subject assets are located in a regional area, somewhat rem011ed from the nearest 
provincial city of Cairns, and far removed from Queensland's capital city of Brisbane, a cost increase over and above that applicable to the nearest 
provincial city or in relation to a Brisbane Cost Index is necessary to account for the increase in replacement cost due to transportation of labour and 
materials from the nearest supply centre, and also the cost of specialised labour and contractors necessary for the construction work. 

The road network has been segmented into Individually significant components. Unit rates are spplied to the individual road components bass, 
pavement, surface and kerb of each rood in order to delernme the replacement cost. 

The unit rates appied are based on greenfield project costs and include all materials, labour and overheads. These un~ rates are estimated using 
infonnation collated from similar recent project costs, unn rate databases, Rawlinson's Construction Handbook and quotations. 

In relation to the assessment of the es1imation of the remaining uaeful tile of each structure it Is considered that the caleulallons should be done on the 
baaf8 of the overal structure, with individulll components baing separately assessed for remaining useful life. This is clue to the nature of tht 
structures whereby it i6 considered that the different identifiable construction components making up the total structure would not depreclats at t he 
same rate per annum or have the same overall totall~e el<pectancy. 

When considering the estimated remaining life of each of the assets, consideration has been given to the construction: present age; cond~ion; 
serviceability; climate conditions, and present and potential utilisation. Investigations have been made into the lifespan of the infrastructure assets to 
better understand the factors Influencing sustainable phyaical, functional and economic asset life-expectancy. This has been combined with general 
information collated by AssetVal. 

To accurately assess the value of the infrastructure assets, lhe valuer or relevant consultants carried out an inspection of the assets (where practical). 
calculated the size of each asset, and recorded structural details. The general condition, total life expectancy and actual residual ~fe expectancy for 
the infrastructure assets have also been established as a resu~ of the inspections carried out. For those assets where an inspection was not possible 
(mainly underground water and sewerage infrastructtJre) a revak.lation was carried olll on the basis of the age of the asset with guidance !rom council 
staff in relation to recent repairs, capital WOiks, and surrounding environmental infrMttucture. 

As part of the 20t6 desktop valuation, infrastructure assets were c11tegorised into five asset categories with four indices developed from Inputs 
extracted from producer price, government and construction indices. These indices are: Road and Bridge, Civil, Mechanical and Electrical. These 
Indices were then compared to Queensland Treasury's Engineering Construction Revaluation Index for reasonableness. 

Based on advice from AssetVal, Council has adopted a t .8% increase in road & bridge costs, 1.4% increase in civil construction costs. 3.t% increase 
for mechanical costs and a 0.7% increase in electrical costs. The indices have been applied to roads, water and sewerage and olher infrastructure 
assets as appropriata. 

Roads, drainage and culverts (level 3) 

As detaued above councn's roads and drainage network has been valued using written down current replacement cost. This method utiises a number 
of inputs that requ~e judgement and are there1ore classed as unobsetvable. While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and based 
upon past experience, different judgements ooulcl resutt in a dilterent valuation. 

Ar. noted above, an indexation has been applied to road assets as at 30 June 2018. There has also been a revaluation adjustment to accumulated 
depreciation on roads as a resuK of updated cond~ion ratings. The cond~ion of road assets had been substantially improved as at 30 June 20t6 
folowing significant NORRA work canied out during the year. This has been reflected nlhe fair vakJe of road assets as at 30 June. 

W11ler and sewerage (Jeve/3) 

The water and sewerage assets were segregated into active and passive assets: peasive assets were not further componenti&ed and consist 
primarily of mains. Unit rates were applied baaed on similar recent project costs from other entities. unit rata databases, indices, Rawr~t~son's 
Construction rates and quotations. 

The remaining actrve assets consist of treatment, pumping and storage assets. These assets were componentised and valued independently, with 
anowances for complexity, size. function and s~e factors. 

Current replacement cost for water and sewerage was calculated based on &l<pected replacement costs. In all cases the assets were disaggregated 
to component level to ensure a reliable measure of cost and service capacity and deterioration of estimated remaining life. 

Consistent with roads, it is assumed that envirorvnental factors such as soil type, climate and topography ans consistent across each segment and 
that a segment is des~ and construcled to the same standard and uses a consistent amount oflaOO.. and materials. Where assets are located 
underground and physical inspection is not possible, the age, size and type of construction material, together with current and planned maintenance 
records are used to determine the fair value at reporting date. 
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14 Fair value measurements (continued} 

The method used to value councU's water and sewerage assel8 utilises a number of i'lputs that require judgement and are therefore classed as 
unobservable. While these judgements are made w~h the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different judgementa could result in a 
different valuation. 

Other infrastructure 11ssets (/eve/3) 
The replacement cost of al assets which as a group represent Other infrastructure assets have been estimated through first principles, namely 
summing together the costs of materials, labour and overhead5 which were established through contact with suppliers, council, by having reference to 
recently constructed project costs and publlcally available reference material, having regard to the location and conditions. 

The method used to value council's other infrastruclure assets utiises a number of inputs that requi'e judgement and are therefore classed as 
unobservable. While these judgements are made w~h the greatest care, and based upon years of experience, different judgements could resuK in a 
different valuation. 

As noted above, an indexation has been applied to road assets as at 30 June 2016. A further revalualion adjustment has been recorded durilg the 
year ending 30 June 2016 as a result of a change to the adopted unit rates for runway assets. The new rates are considered to be more accurate 
based on review of actual cost data. 

Finance lease assets (level 3) 

These assets relate to the housing leases in place to the Queensland Government for 40 years. Wtutst the lease payment amounts are documented 
in the lease agreements ~evel2), the Cllk:Uiation of the fair value of these assets is at the net present value incorporating an average amual CPI 
increase and discount rate which are both unobservable Inputs (level 3). It is considered that these other inputs are significant to the valuation 
therefore overall valuation has been classified as level 3. 

Ftnanee leases are recognised at the present value of the expected future lease payments receivable (fair value). The calculation of the present value 
of the expected future lease inoome has included an estimate of average annual Consumer Price Index "CPI" increases of 2.5% and a discount rate 
of 3.21%. 

(lv) Valuation proc-. 

Councirs valuation policies and procedures are set by the executive management team. They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an 
analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant information. Counci 's current poicy for the valuation of financial assets and property, plant and 
equipment (recurring fair value measurements) is set out in note 13. NorHecurring fair value measurements are made at the point of reclassification 
by a registered valuer. 

(i/\0 
ce~ified s':;~crn\:sY 
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15 Trade and other payables 2016 2015 

16 

Current 
Creditors and accruals 
Annual leave 

GST payable 

Note $ 

3,804,100 
494,055 

4,298,157 

$ 

3,153,360 
422,250 

21,594 

3,597,204 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract 
price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day 
terms. 

Salaries and wages 
A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates In 
respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported as a payable. 

Annual leave 

A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates In 
respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued expense and Is reported as a payable. 

As council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liabiHty beyond 12 months annual leave is classified as a current liability. 

Provisions 

Current 
Long service leave 126,945 165,374 

126 945 165,374 

Non-current 
Long service leave 53,864 116,338 

53,864 116,338 

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected 
future increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the 
employee remaining in the Council's employment or other associated employment which would resuit in the Council being required 
to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of tile benefit earned to date, and the result is discounted 
to present value. The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to 
discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present value. 

Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability 
beyond 12 months, long service leave Is classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current. 
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17 Borrowings 

Current 
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation 

Non Current 
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation 

Loans • Queensland Treasury 

Opening balance at beginning of financial year 
Loans raised - Working Capital Facility 
Principal repayments 
Book value at end of financial year 

Note 
2016 

$ 

171,082 
171,082 

1,951,035 
1,951 ,035 

2,162,690 

(40,573) 
2,122,117 

2015 
$ 

2,162,690 
2,162,690 

2,014,171 
148,519 

2,162,690 

The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was $2,130,915. This represents the value of the debt if council repaid it at that 
date. The Working Capital Facility was converted to a loan on 30 June 2016. 

Oto 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total contractual Carrying amount 
cash flows 

$ $ $ $ $ 
2016 
Trade and other payables 3 ,804,102 3,804,102 3,804,102 
Loans-QTC 171,082 512,000 1,439,035 2,122,117 2,122,117 

3,975,184 512,000 1,439,035 5,926,219 5,926,219 

2015 
Trade and other payables 3,174,954 3,174,954 3,174,954 
Loans-QTC 2,162 690 2,162,690 2,162,690 

5 337 644 5,337,644 5,337,644 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these 
liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 council adopts an annual debt policy that sets out council's planned 
borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a term no longer than the 
expected life of the asset. Council also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corporation's borrowing guideWnes and 
ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels at all times. All borrowing costs are expensed in the period In 
which they are Incurred. No borrowing costs are capitalised on qualifying assets. 
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18 Commitments for expenditure 

Contractual commitments 
Note 

2016 
$ 

Contractual commitments at the end of the financial year but not recognised in the financial statements are as follows: 

Within one year 125,000 
125,000 

The majority of the prior year commitments related to NDRRA expenditure. 

Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows: 

19 Contingent liabilities 

Local Government Mutual 

2015 
$ 

2,360,056 
2,360 ,056 

The council is a member of the local government mutual liability self·insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the pool being 
wound up or it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be met 
by the Individual pool members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions In respect to any year 
that a deficit arises. 

As at 30 June 2016 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus and it is not anticipated any liability will arise. 

Local Government Workcare 
The council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self·insurance scheme, Local Government 
Workcare. Under this scheme the council has provided an indemnity towards a bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may 
remain should the self insurance Ucence be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only 
the Queensland Government's worlters compensation authority may call on any part of the guarantee should the above 
circumstances arise. At 30 June 2016 the council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is $109,235 (2015: $107,851). 
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20 Superannuation 

The council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Old) (the scheme). The scheme is a Multi-employer plan 
as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AAS B 119 Employee Benefits . 

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local government 
superannuation scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry 
(Supervision) legislation. 

The scheme has three elements referred to as: 

The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund; 
The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefrt fund members working for regional local 
governments; and 

The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF) 

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defJned in AASB 119. Council has no liability to or interest in the ABF other than the 
payment of the statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009 . 

Council does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore, is not exposed to the obligations, assets or 
costs associated with this fund. 

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB 119. The council is not able to account for the Regional DBF as a 
defined benefit plan in accordance with AASB 119 because the scheme is unable to account to the council for its proportionate share 
of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs. The funding policy adopted in respect of the Regional DBF Is directed at 
ensuring that the benefits accruing to members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due. 

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the rate of contributions from relevant local 
government employers subject to advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no changes had been made to 
prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee assets and there are no known requirements to change the rate 
of contributions. 

Any amount by wr.ich either fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits and contributions to the Regional DBF, and 
is not an asset or liability of the council. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements of any over or under funding 
of the scheme. 

As at reporting dale, the assets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested benefits 

The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2015. The actuary indicated thai ·At the valuation 
date of 1 July 2015, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested benefits and the scheme was in a satisfactory financial 
position as at the valuation date. • 

In the 2015 actuarial report the actuary has recommended no change to the employer contribution levels at this time. 

Under the Local Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme has the power to levy additional contributions on councils which 
have employees in the Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable • normally when the assets 
of the DBF are insufficient to meet members' benefits. 

The next actuarial investigation is scheduled to be conducted as at 1 July 2018. 

The amount of superannuation contributions paid by council to the 
scheme in this period for the benefit of em ployees was: 

Note 

6 

2016 
$ 

581,464 

2015 
$ 

534,169 

The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the council makes to the superannuation plan 
which provides benefits to its employees. 
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21 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 

Ne{resull 
No~sh Items: 

Depreciation and amortisation 
Impairment of trade and other receivables 
Loss I Gain on revaluation of finance 

Investing and development activities: 
Net (profit)/loss on disposal of non-currant assets 
Capital grants and contributions 

Financing activities: 
Borrowing costs 

Changes In operatlng assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) I decrease in receivables 
(Increase) I decrease in inventory 
lncreasel(decrease) in borrowings 
lncreasel(decrease) In payables 
lncreasel{decrease) in other provisions 

Net cash inflow I {outflow) from operating activitles 

22 Events after the reporting period 

Note 

13 

12 

8 
4{b) 

2016 
$ 

8,517,733 

5,740,326 
517,000 

(900,677) 
5,356,649 

(21,018) 
!13,425,645) 
p 3,446,664l 

(2.214,638) 
457,561 
(40,573) 

700,954 
(100,903) 

(1,197,599) 

U69,881l 

2015 
$ 

1,220,265 

6,164,998 
(21,000) 

1,097,629 
7,241 ,627 

564,759 
(7,180,152) 
(6,615,393) 

91 491 
91491 

212,785 
(75,848) 

302,268 
21,280 

460,485 

2.398.475 

There were no matertal adjusting events after the balance date. The following events occulTed after the end of the reporting period: 

Kowanyama CatUe Company Pty Ltd (In liquidation) 

On 3rd December 2015 the liquidator called a creditors meeting and reported that it was likely that they would receive a dividend of 
1 00 cenl5 in the dollar. Council received notification in January 2017 that the final report is in the process of being finalised and that 
the report will include declaration of a first and final d ividend. Once the declaration of dividend has been made, the statutory period 
to review all claims and pay the dividend Is 60 days and it Is expected that Council will receive the dividend In early March 2017. 
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Management Certificate 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 
[!he Regulation) and other prescribed requirements. 

In accordance with section 212(5) ofthe Regulation we certify that: 

~I) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 for the establishment and 
keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the general purpose financial statements, present a true and fair view, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the 
council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year. 

Michael Yam 

Date: 1._ "l..._ / '2... 1 L l -- __:::___,J, __ _ 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 

Report on the Financial Report 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council, which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement of 
comprehensive fncome, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Mayor and Acting Chief Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements Identified in the Local 
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibili~y also includes such internal 
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit 
was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned 
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves pelforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, 
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report .. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 

Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 



The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person ebout the way !n which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant 

Basis for qualified opinion 

For the revenue items listed below, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
to silpport that the Council calculated revenue in accordance with agreed rates, or recognised 
all eligib!e revenues. As the evidence available to me was iimited, my audit procedures for 
these revenue sources had to be restricted to the amounts recorded in the financial records. 
Because of these matters, I am unable to form, and do not express, an opinion on the amounts 
reported in Note 3 for the following revenue items: 

., recoverable works revenue- building and maintenance teams of $4 451 846 (2015: 
$3 261 666) 

It' rates, levies and charges of $986 648 (2015: $773 427) 

• contract and recoverable works- ether of $363 422 (2015: $171 753} 

;:, recreatlonal services of $0 (2015: $10 618) 

My 2014-15 repo:i: was qualified on a similar basis and the comparative balances remain 
qualified. 

In 20~4-15, the Counc~l was also unable to provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence tha! 
the fo!low!ng revenue items reported in Note 3 were complete and accura1e. Consequently, ! 
am still unable tc form, and do not e){press, an opinion on these comparat1ve balances: 

• fees and charges of $372 309 

• rental ~!"!come of $544 293 

• saies of goods of $1 438 270 

• equipment hire of $66 286 

"' cost recoveries of -$14 670 

• administration fee of $165 943 

€. other income - other income of $7 4 832 

Because of the limitation of scope on these revenue balances, ~ am also unable to express an 
opinion on the completeness and valuation of the following trade and other receivables 
disclosed in Note 10 to the financial report for the years endjng 30 June 2016 and 
30 JuPrle 2015: 

~ trade debtors of $605 400 from $1 914 643 (2015: $49 055 from $1124 722) 

o accrued revenue of $307 564 (2015: $0) 

The impact of the above matters on the financial report is unable to be quantified due to a lack 
of reliable data. 



Qualified Opinion 

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, except for the possible effects of the 
matters described In the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs above -

(a) I have received all the information and explanations which I have required; and 

(b} in my opinion -

(i) the prescribed requirements In relation to the establishment and keeping of 
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed 
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Kowanyama 
Aboriginal Shire Council for the financial year 1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016 and of 
the financial position as at the end of that year. 

other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit 
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and 
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the 
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks 
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy 
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented 
information. 

c c etc 
C G STRICKLAND CA 
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland} 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 
Current-year Financial Sustalnability Statement (Audited) 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

Measures of Financial Sustalnabillty 

Council's performance at 30 June 2016 against key financial ratios 
and targets: 

Operating surplus ratio 

Asset sustainability ratio 

Net financial liab~ities ratio 

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation 

How the measure is calculated Actual 

Net result (excluding capital items) divided (28%) 
by total operating revenue (excluding capital 
items) 

Capital expenditure on the replacement of 242% 
assets (renewals) divided by depreciation 
expense. 

Total liabilities less current assets divided (8%) 
by total operating revenue (excluding capital 
items) 

Target 

Between 0% 
and 10% 

greater than 
90% 

not greater 
than 60% 

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of the Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainabi/ity) Guideline 2013 . The amounts used to 
calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the council 's audited general 
purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016. 

Certificate of Accuracy 
For the year ended 30 June 2016 

This current-year financial sustainabitity statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local 

Government Regulation 2012 (the regulation). 

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustainability statement 
has been accurately calculated. 

Michael Yam 

Date:'1.. '1_. /~ ({ 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council 

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustalnability Statement 

I have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainabllity statement, which is a 
special purpose financial report of Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Council for the year ended 
30 June 2016, comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the 
Mayor and Acting Chief Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustsinability Statement 

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year 
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately 
calc~lated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement 
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of 
Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require compliance witll relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and that the audit is planned and perfonned to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making · those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not tor the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the statement. 

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately 
calculated based on the Council's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not 
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor 
on the Council's future sustainability. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 



Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an aud!t, access to aH documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

~ qualified my opinion on the 2015-16 general purpose financial statements of Kowanyama 
Aboriginal Shire Council, as the Council was unable to provide sufficient and appropriate audit 
evidence on the completer.ess and accuracy of certain revenue sources. As revenue Impacts 
on the calculation of both the Operating Surptus Ratio and Net Financial Liabilities Ratio, I am 
unable to and do r.ot form an opinion on the accuracy of the figures used in the calculation of 
these ratios; reported at -28% and -8% respectively. 

Qualified Opinion 

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, except for 
the possible effa~.s of the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph above, 
in ali material respects, the current-year financial sustainab11ity statement of Kowanyama 
Aboriginal Shire Council , for the year ended 30 June 2016, has been accurately calculated. 

Emphasis of Matter- Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note ~ which describes the basis of 
accounijng. The current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in 
accordance with the Finencial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of 
fulfilling the Council's reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
As a result, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose. 

Other Matters o Electronic Presentation of the fi.I!!.!1.Hts~ Statement 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpose finanCial report should r~ote thai 
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented alectronrcaliy and 
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the financial 
statements. ~f users of the financia! statements are concerned with the inherent risks arising 
from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the 
audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information. 

C G STRICKLAND CA 
{as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 



Kowanyama Aboriginal Shire Coon~ii 
Long-Tenn Financ:ial Sustanability Statement 
Prepared a& It 30 June 2016 

·Projected for ttl• yee.r. ended 

Meaaures of Financial Measure Tllfllet Actuals at 30 30.blo 30JIM1• 30.1u'le 30 Juno 30 Juno 30Junt 30June 30J\Mle 30 June 

Su&talnabDity J\M1e :21116 2017 2018 :21119 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 :21125 

Council 

Operating surplus ratio Net result divided by total Betw...,O% 128%) 2% .... 3% 3% ""' 3% .,. .,. 4% 

operating revenue an<l10% 

Asset sustain ability ratio Capital expenditure on the greater then 242% so.. ~ 71% - 7K 60% - ~ 80.0% 

replacement of assets (renewals) 110% 

d"IVided by depreciation expense. 
Nellinancialliabiiities ratio Total liabilities lass current assets not grear:er than (""') (54%) (74%) (95 ... ) 1117%) (134%) (155%) (175%) (196%) (200%) 

divided by total operating revenue 00% 

Kowanyama Aboriginal 

Co~ncil measures revenue and expendi1Liretrends over time as a guide to future requirements and to melee docisions about the efficient allocation of rMour~s to ensure the moSiaflectlve 
provision or services. Councira financial :nanagement swategy Is prudent and that Its long-term ftnancial forecast shows a sound financial position but both are dependent on on-going State 
and Comlll<lt.-allh Government stJPPCXI. f'Tollided INs support is ongoing oounc1,.;1 t>e able to meet 1he community's current and futuro needs. 

Certificate of Accuracy 
For the lon~term financial sustainabUity &tatement prepared as at 30 June 2016 

This loog-tenn 1lnonciat sustalnobWry statemont tiM been preparod purs.- to Sec:tlon t73 of the LOCfll 
Gowrnmort Rfi/UIIItlon !lOJ2 (ll1o r.ll"lallanl. 

In accordanco - Section 212(5) of 1he Regulatioo we certify lhol fllsloog-term finanCjal sustainabillty &talement 
1\aS been .......-etycak:dated. 

Cameron Unwl• 
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